






CITY OF SNELLVILLE 

MEETINGS AND LOCAL EVENTS 

MARCH 28, 2022 

 

 
March 28 
Council Meeting  
Monday, March 28, 2022 
6:30 pm Work Session – Conference Room 145, City Hall  
7:30 pm Meeting - Council Chambers, City Hall 
 
April 2 
Snellville Winter Farmers’ Market 
Saturday, April 2, 2022 
9:00 am to Noon 
City Hall Parking Lot 
 
April 3 
Spring Youth Flag Football Begins 
Sunday, April 3, 2022 
T.W Briscoe Park  
 
April 3 
Broadcast of 03/28/22 Council Meeting 
Sunday, April 3, 2022 
Watch the broadcast of the 03/28/2022 Council Meeting on Comcast Channel 25 at 6:30 pm 
 
April 11 
Council Meeting  
Monday, April 11, 2022 
6:30 pm Work Session – Conference Room 145, City Hall  
7:30 pm Meeting - Council Chambers, City Hall 

https://www.snellville.org/council-meeting-2020-01-27
https://www.snellville.org/broadcast-of-11320-council-meeting-2020-01-19
https://www.snellville.org/council-meeting-2020-01-27












Agenda Item Summary 
 

 
TO:  The Mayor and Council 
 
FROM:  Jason Thompson, Director 

Department of Planning and Development 
 
DATE:  March 28, 2022 
 
RE:  #SUP 22‐01 
 
REQUEST:  Special Use Permit and Request for Variances for a 1‐Story 8,200 sq. 

ft. Kidney Dialysis Center and Associated Parking 
0.768± Acre Site at 2135 E. Main Street, Snellville, Georgia 

     
STATUS:  Public Hearing 
__________________________________________________________________ 
 
Financial Impact:    Site Development Permit fees; Building 

Permit fees; Real Property Taxes; and 
Occupational Taxes 

 
Planning Department 
Recommendation:  Approval with Conditions 
 
Planning Commission 
Meeting and 
Recommendation:  January 25, 2022 (Approval with Conditions) 
 
Mayor and Council 
Meetings:  February 14, 2022 (1st Reading)   

February 28, 2022 (2nd Reading – Tabled to March 28, 2022) 
 
Action Requested:  Table to April 11, 2022 Regular Meeting 
 
Draft Ordinance:  Attached 
 
 
 
Request  received March 17,  2022  from Wesley Padgett, RCG Ventures,  LLC,  to 
table  action  on  the  application  until  the  April  11,  2022  Mayor  and  Council 
Regular Meeting and Public Hearing. 
 
 
 

City of Snellville  2342 Oak Road  Snellville, GA 30078  770.985.3514 www.snellville.org 



 
 
 
 
0.768± Acre Site at 2135 E. Main Street, Snellville, Georgia  
Case #SUP 22‐01 
March 28, 2022   
Page… 2 
 
 
Case Documents (website link): 
 

 Letter of Intent & Variances (12‐10‐2021) 

 SUP 22‐01 Application (12‐10‐2021) 

 Parcel D As‐Built Survey Preliminary Plat (12‐7‐2021) 

 Sample Colored Elevations (12‐3‐2021) 

 Proposed Site Plan (12‐9‐2021) 

 Proposed Site Plan Aerial (12‐9‐2021) 

 Jan 25 2022 Planning Department Case Summary & Analysis (1‐18‐
2022) 

 1‐21‐2022 Revised Aerial Site Plan (1‐21‐2022) 

 Official Jan 25 2022 Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes 
(2‐23‐2022) 

 Jan 25 2022 Planning Commission Case Report (1‐28‐2022) 
 

https://www.snellville.org/sites/default/files/uploads/planning-development/documents/2022%20Agenda%20Packet/SUP%2022-01/letter-of-intent-variances-12-10-2021-.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/sites/default/files/uploads/planning-development/documents/2022%20Agenda%20Packet/SUP%2022-01/sup-22-01-application-12-10-2021-.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/sites/default/files/uploads/planning-development/documents/2022%20Agenda%20Packet/SUP%2022-01/parcel-d-as-built-survey-preliminary-plat-12-7-2021-.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/sites/default/files/uploads/planning-development/documents/2022%20Agenda%20Packet/SUP%2022-01/sample-colored-elevations-12-3-2021-.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/sites/default/files/uploads/planning-development/documents/2022%20Agenda%20Packet/SUP%2022-01/proposed-site-plan-12-9-2021-.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/sites/default/files/uploads/planning-development/documents/2022%20Agenda%20Packet/SUP%2022-01/proposed-site-plan-12-9-2021-.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/sites/default/files/uploads/planning-development/documents/2022%20Agenda%20Packet/SUP%2022-01/sup-22-01-staff-report-01-14-2022-.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/sites/default/files/uploads/planning-development/documents/2022%20Agenda%20Packet/SUP%2022-01/21055rcg_aerial.01.21.22.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/sites/default/files/uploads/planning-development/documents/2022%20Agenda%20Packet/SUP%2022-01/pc-case-report-sup-22-01-jan-26-2022-1.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/agendas-minutes


ORD 2022-02     #SUP 22-01  Page 1 of 8 

 

STATE OF GEORGIA 

 

CITY OF SNELLVILLE 

 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2022-02 

  

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 

SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA, AS AMENDED, FOR A 0.768± ACRE TRACT OF LAND 

LOCATED IN LAND LOT 38 OF THE 5TH LAND DISTRICT, GWINNETT COUNTY, 

GEORGIA, 2135 EAST MAIN STREET, SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA; TO GRANT A 

SPECIAL USE PERMIT; TO GRANT VARIANCES; TO ADD CONDITIONS 

AFFECTING THE PROPERTY; TO PROVIDE FOR SEVERABILITY; TO REPEAL 

CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; TO PROVIDE AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR 

OTHER PURPOSES. 

 

CASE NUMBER: #SUP 22-01 

 

PROPERTY OWNER: RCG-Snellville, LLC 

 Atlanta, Georgia 30305 

 

LOCATION: p/o 2135 E. Main Street, Snellville, Georgia 

 (the “Property”) 

 

TAX PARCEL: R5038 174  

 

DEVELOPMENT/PROJECT: Kidney Dialysis Center 

 

APPLICANT/CONTACT: Wesley Padgett 

 RCG Ventures, LLC 

 Atlanta, Georgia 30305 

 404-816-5454 or WesleyP@rcgventures.com 

 

 

WHEREAS, the governing authority of the City of Snellville, Georgia is the Mayor 

and Council thereof; and 

 WHEREAS, the governing authority of the City of Snellville, Georgia desires to 

amend its official zoning map as it applies to the 0.768± acre tract of land located at 2135 

mailto:WesleyP@rcgventures.com


ORD 2022-02     #SUP 22-01  Page 2 of 8 

East Main Street, Snellville, Georgia (Tax Parcel R5038 174) and grant the requested 

special use permit to operate a kidney dialysis center; and,  

 WHEREAS, the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Snellville, Georgia, 

will be positively impacted by the adoption of this Ordinance; therefore: 

 IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING AUTHORITY OF THE 

CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA, and by the authority thereof:  

 Section 1.    For reasons stated in the public hearing and recommendations of the 

Planning Department and Planning Commission, a special use permit is hereby granted for 

the development and use of a kidney dialysis center on the 0.768± acre tract of land located 

at 2135 E. Main Street, Snellville, Georgia (Tax Parcel R5038 174), described and shown 

on the aerial site plan entitled “RCG Ventures Snellville Oaks Davita”, dated 1-21-2022 

(stamped received 1-21-2022) in Exhibit “A”, a copy of which is attached hereto and 

incorporated herein by reference, subject to the following enumerated variances and 

conditions: 

VARIANCES: 

(a) Approval of variance from UDO Sec. 205-1.6.B.6 to increase the ten (10) feet 

maximum front yard building setback requirement of ‘shopfront’ building types 

to fifteen (15) feet. 

(b) Approval of variance from UDO Sec. 201-2.10 to remove the requirement that 

‘shopfront’ building types must provide a building entrance facing the street 

every 75 feet along with associated six (6) foot wide sidewalk/walkway. 

CONDITIONS: 



ORD 2022-02     #SUP 22-01  Page 3 of 8 

1. The property shall be developed in accordance with the submitted aerial site 

plan entitled “RCG Ventures Snellville Oaks Davita”, dated 1-21-2022 

(stamped received 1-21-2022), with modifications permitted to meet conditions 

of zoning or State, County, and City regulations. Substantial variation from the 

conceptual rezoning site plan, as determined by the Director of Planning and 

Development will require Mayor and Council approval, after receiving 

recommendations by the Planning Department and Planning Commission. 

2. Applicant shall be required to continue the streetscape requirements along the 

private street to the overall shopping center as shown on the submitted site plan 

with additional landscaping as required by the Unified Development Ordinance. 

3. The development shall abide by all applicable standards of the Unified 

Development Ordinance, unless otherwise specified in these conditions or 

through approval of a variance by the Zoning Board of Appeals. 

4. Inter-parcel access to be provided to the adjacent parcel to the north (R5038 

187) as shown on the submitted site plan. Said connection and improvements 

to be completed prior to issuance of the certificate of occupancy. Inter-parcel 

access to the adjacent property to the east (R5038 182) is not required. 

5. The applicant shall remove the existing non-conforming freestanding pylon 

sign within twelve (12) months following issuance of a certificate of occupancy 

for the kidney dialysis center. 

6. Uses involving adult entertainment, including the sale or display of adult 

magazines, books, videos and as further defined by the Adult Entertainment 

Ordinance in effect on the date this condition is imposed, are prohibited. 



ORD 2022-02     #SUP 22-01  Page 4 of 8 

7. New signs higher than 15 feet or larger than 225 sq. ft. in area are prohibited. 

8. In the event that the subject property is not leased, or purchased, or occupied by 

DaVita Snellville Dialysis within eighteen (18) months from the date of Mayor 

and Council approval, or if the property is occupied and later vacated by DaVita 

Snellville Dialysis the Special Use Permit will become null and void. 

9. The approved zoning conditions and variances shall be referenced on any 

recorded plat, including subdivision plat provided to any buyer or lessee. 

Section 2. The preamble of this Ordinance shall be considered to be and is 

hereby incorporated by reference as if fully set forth herein. 

Section 3.  The changes in zoning classification is to be noted on the Official 

Zoning Map of the City of Snellville, Georgia as approved by the Mayor and Council as 

soon as reasonably possible following the adoption of this Ordinance. The Official Zoning 

Map of the City of Snellville, Georgia, shall also be amended with an editorial note 

specifying the date these Snellville zoning amendments were approved by the Mayor and 

Council and specifying the parcels affected by this Ordinance.  Until the changes are 

indicated on the Official Zoning Map of the City of Snellville, Georgia, as approved by the 

Mayor and Council, this Ordinance shall govern over Official Zoning Map of the City of 

Snellville, Georgia approved by the Mayor and Council to the extent of any discrepancy 

between this Ordinance and the Official Zoning Map of the City of Snellville, Georgia 

approved by the Mayor and Council. 

 Section 4.  (a) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and Council 

that all sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Ordinance are or were, 



ORD 2022-02     #SUP 22-01  Page 5 of 8 

upon their enactment, believed by the Mayor and Council to be fully valid, enforceable and 

constitutional. 

 (b) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and Council that, to the 

greatest extent allowed by law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or 

phrase of this Ordinance is severable from every other section, paragraph, sentence, clause 

or phrase of this Ordinance.  It is hereby further declared to be the intention of the Mayor 

and Council that, to the greatest extent allowed by law, no section, paragraph, sentence, 

clause or phrase of this Ordinance is mutually dependent upon any other section, paragraph, 

sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance. 

 (c) In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this 

Ordinance shall, for any reason whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or 

otherwise unenforceable by the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent 

jurisdiction, it is the express intent of the Mayor and Council that such invalidity, 

unconstitutionality or unenforceability shall, to the greatest extent allowed by law, not 

render invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable any of the remaining phrases, 

clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of the Ordinance and that, to the greatest extent 

allowed by law, all remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of the 

Ordinance shall remain valid, constitutional, enforceable, and of full force and effect. 

Section 5.  All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are 

hereby expressly repealed. 

 Section 6.   This Ordinance was adopted on _________________, 2022.  The 

effective date of this Ordinance shall be the date of adoption unless otherwise stated herein. 

 



ORD 2022-02     #SUP 22-01  Page 6 of 8 

 

 

 

 

[SIGNATURES BEGIN ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE]  



ORD 2022-02     #SUP 22-01  Page 7 of 8 

ORDAINED this ___ day of ______________, 2022. 

   

  

            

           

 

             

       Barbara Bender, Mayor 

        

 

             

ATTEST:      Dave Emanuel, Mayor Pro Tem 

 

 

             

Melisa Arnold, City Clerk    Cristy Lenski, Council Member 

 

 

             

APPROVED AS TO FORM:    Solange Destang, Council Member 

 

 

             

W. Charles Ross, City Attorney   Gretchen Schulz, Council Member 

Powell & Edwards, P.C. 

 

       ______________________________ 

Tod Warner, Council Member 

  



ORD 2022-02     #SUP 22-01  Page 8 of 8 

EXHIBIT “A” 





Agenda Item Summary 
 

 
TO:  The Mayor and Council 
 
FROM:  Jason Thompson, Director 

Department of Planning and Development 
 
DATE:  March 28, 2022 
 
RE:  #LUP 22‐01 – Land Use Plan Amendment to the Snellville 2040 

Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map (“FLUM”) 
 
STATUS:  Public Hearing (2nd Reading) 
__________________________________________________________________ 
 
City  initiated  proposed  amendment  to  the  Snellville  2040  Comprehensive  Plan 
Future Land Use Map, adopted 2‐11‐2019, to amend two undeveloped parcels of 
land  located  near  the  intersection  of  U.S.  Hwy.  78/Athens  Hwy.  and  Rosebud 
Road, Snellville as follows: 
 
Parcel 
No. 

Acres  Current Zoning  Current FLUM  Proposed FLUM 

R5100 
065 

23.61±  BG (General Business) 
District 

Commercial Retail Highway  78  East  Activity 
Center/Node 

R5100 
023 

18.04±  RS‐30 (Single‐family 
Residence) District 

Commercial Retail Highway  78  East  Activity 
Center/Node 

 
 
Both parcels are located in the Highway 78 East Character Area on the Snellville 
2040 Comprehensive Plan Future Development Map. The current zoning of each 
parcel will remain unchanged. 
 
The Highway 78 East Character Area is one of the least developed within the City 
and the two subject parcels represent almost 42 acres of prime property that will 
help  provide  an  opportunity  to  encourage  clustered,  connected  mixed‐use 
development  at  the  eastern  node  of  the Highway  78  East  Activity  Node while 
allowing a mixture of land uses, similar to the Towne Center, but at a smaller scale, 
including retail, civic, office, residential, and recreation in a walkable environment. 
 
The MU (Mixed‐Use) District was created as a new zoning district with the 2020 
adoption  of  the  City’s  Unified  Development  Ordinance  (“UDO”)  to  help  guide 
development within the activity nodes.   
 
 
 
 

City of Snellville  2342 Oak Road  Snellville, GA 30078  770.985.3514 www.snellville.org 



 
 
 
 
Agenda Item Summary ‐ Case #LUP 22‐01 
March 28, 2022   
Page… 2 
 
 
 
Financial Impact:    None 
 
Planning Department 
Recommendation:  Approval 
 
Planning Commission 
Meeting Date 
(Recommendation):  January 25, 2022 (Table to Feb 22 2022) 

February 22, 2022 (Approval) 
 
Mayor and Council 
Meetings:  March 14, 2022 (1st Reading)  

March 28, 2022 (2nd Reading and Public Hearing) 
 
Action Requested:  Consideration, Public Hearing and Action 
 
Draft Ordinance:  Attached 
 
Case Documents (website link): 
 

 Snellville Future Development Map (adopted 2‐11‐2019) 

 Highway 78 East Character Area (adopted 2‐11‐2019) 

 MU (Mixed‐Use) District (adopted 10‐26‐2020) 

 1‐25‐2022 Memorandum to Planning Commission (12‐27‐2021) 

 Proposed Future Land Use Map Amendment (1‐13‐2022) 

 #LUP 22‐01 Land Use Plan Amendment Application (1‐19‐2022) 

 Official Jan 25 2022 Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes 
(2‐23‐2022) 

 Jan 25 2022 Planning Commission Case Report (1‐28‐2022) 

 Unofficial Feb 22 2022 Planning Commission Regular Meeting 
Minutes (2‐23‐2022) 

 Feb 22 2022 Planning Commission Case Report (2‐23‐2022) 
 

https://www.snellville.org/sites/default/files/uploads/planning-development/documents/2022%20Agenda%20Packet/LUP%2022-01/snellville-future-development-map-adopted-2019-02-11.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/sites/default/files/uploads/planning-development/documents/2022%20Agenda%20Packet/LUP%2022-01/highway-78-east-character-area.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/sites/default/files/uploads/planning-development/documents/2022%20Agenda%20Packet/LUP%2022-01/mu-mixed-use-district.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/sites/default/files/uploads/planning-development/documents/2022%20Agenda%20Packet/LUP%2022-01/lup-22-01-flu-memo-to-pc-jan-25-2022-1.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/sites/default/files/uploads/planning-development/documents/2022%20Agenda%20Packet/CP%2022-01/lup-22-01.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/sites/default/files/uploads/planning-development/documents/2022%20Agenda%20Packet/LUP%2022-01/lup-22-01-application-1-19-2022-.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/sites/default/files/uploads/planning-development/documents/2022%20Agenda%20Packet/LUP%2022-01/pc-case-report-lup-22-01-jan-26-2022-.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/sites/default/files/uploads/planning-development/documents/2022%20Agenda%20Packet/LUP%2022-01/pc-case-report-lup-22-01-feb-22-2022-.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/agendas-minutes
https://www.snellville.org/agendas-minutes


 

ORD 2022-05     #LUP 22-01  Page 1 of 9 
 

 
STATE OF GEORGIA 
 
CITY OF SNELLVILLE 
 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2022-05 

  
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE 2040 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN FUTURE 

LAND USE MAP FOR THE CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA, AS AMENDED, FOR 

THE 18.04± ACRE TRACT AND 23.61± ACRE TRACT OF LAND LOCATED IN 

LAND LOT 100 OF THE 5TH LAND DISTRICT, GWINNETT COUNTY, GEORGIA; 

TO PROVIDE FOR SEVERABILITY; TO REPEAL CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; 

TO PROVIDE AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 

 
CASE NUMBER: #LUP 22-01 
 
PROPERTY OWNER 
18.04± ACRE TRACT 
(R5100 023): Sinocoin Investment, LLC 
 3500 Lenox Road NE Ste 1500 
 Atlanta, Georgia 30326  
 
PROPERTY OWNER 
23.61± ACRE TRACT 
(R5100 065): The Kroger Co. 
 1014 Vine Street 
 Cincinnati, Ohio 45202  
 
LOCATION:  Intersection of Rosebud Road and 
  Athens Highway, Loganville, Georgia 
 
APPLICANT/CONTACT; Jason Thompson, Director 
  Department of Planning and Development 
  City of Snellville, Georgia 
  770-985-3518 or JThompson@snellville.org 
 
DEVELOPMENT/PROJECT: Undeveloped Land 
 
 



 

ORD 2022-05     #LUP 22-01  Page 2 of 9 
 

 WHEREAS, the governing authority of the City of Snellville, Georgia is the Mayor 

and Council thereof; and 

 WHEREAS, the governing authority of the City of Snellville, Georgia desires to 

amend the 2040 Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map as it applies to the 18.04± acre 

tract of undeveloped land located in the 3100 Block Rosebud Road (Tax Parcel R5100 023) 

and the 23.61± acre tract of undeveloped land located at 1000 Athens Highway (Tax Parcel 

R5100 065); and 

WHEREAS, the subject undeveloped property is located in the Highway 78 East 

Character Area on the Snellville 2040 Comprehensive Plan Future Development Map; and 

WHEREAS, the Highway 78 East Character Area is one of the least developed 

within the City and the two subject parcels represent almost 42 acres of prime property that 

will help provide an opportunity to encourage clustered, connected mixed‐use development 

at the eastern node of the Highway 78 East Activity Center/Node while allowing a mixture 

of land uses, similar to the Towne Center, but at a smaller scale, including retail, civic, 

office, residential, and recreation in a walkable environment; and 

 WHEREAS, the MU (Mixed‐Use) District was created as a new zoning district 

with the 2020 adoption of the City’s Unified Development Ordinance (“UDO”) to help 

guide development within the activity centers/nodes; and 

WHEREAS, the current zoning of each subject parcel is to remain unchanged until 

such time that a new rezoning application is received and approved by the Mayor and 

Council; and, 

WHEREAS, the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Snellville, Georgia, 

will be positively impacted by the adoption of this Ordinance; therefore: 



 

ORD 2022-05     #LUP 22-01  Page 3 of 9 
 

 IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING AUTHORITY OF THE 

CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA, and by the authority thereof:  

 Section 1.    The future land use designation of the 18.04± acre tract of land 

shown on the Gwinnett County GIS Parcel Map printed 1-19-2022 entitled “18.04± Acres 

in 3100 Block Rosebud Road, Sinocoin Investment LLC, Tax Parcel R5100 023”, 

described and shown in Exhibit “A”, a copy of which is attached hereto and incorporated 

herein by reference, and the future land use designation for the 23.61± acre tract of land 

shown on the Gwinnett county GIS Parcel Map printed 1-19-2022 entitled “23.61± Acres 

at 1000 Athens Hwy., The Kroger Co., Tax Parcel R5100 065” described and shown on 

Exhibit “B”, a copy of which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, is 

hereby changed from Commercial Retail to Highway 78 East Activity Center/Node. 

 This change in the future land use, as shown on the future land use plan Exhibit 

“C”, a copy of which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference is to be noted 

on the City of Snellville 2040 Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map, as previously 

amended and as approved by the Mayor and Council as soon as reasonably possible 

following the adoption of this Ordinance. The future land use map shall also be amended 

with an editorial note specifying the date this Snellville Land Use Plan Amendment was 

approved by the Mayor and Council and specifying the parcel(s) affected by this 

Ordinance. Until the change is indicated on the City of Snellville 2040 Comprehensive 

Plan Future Land Use Map approved by the Mayor and Council, this Ordinance shall 

govern over the City of Snellville 2040 Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map 

approved by the Mayor and Council to the extent of any discrepancy between this 



 

ORD 2022-05     #LUP 22-01  Page 4 of 9 
 

Ordinance and the City of Snellville 2040 Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map 

approved by the Mayor and Council. 

Section 2. All prior conditions of zoning that are attached to Parcel R5101 023 

and/or Parcel R5101 065 remain in full-force and effect. 

Section 3. The preamble of this Ordinance shall be considered to be and is 

hereby incorporated by reference as if fully set out herein. 

 Section 4.  (a) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and Council 

that all sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Ordinance are or were, 

upon their enactment, believed by the Mayor and Council to be fully valid, enforceable and 

constitutional. 

 (b) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and Council that, to the 

greatest extent allowed by law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or 

phrase of this Ordinance is severable from every other section, paragraph, sentence, clause 

or phrase of this Ordinance. It is hereby further declared to be the intention of the Mayor 

and Council that, to the greatest extent allowed by law, no section, paragraph, sentence, 

clause or phrase of this Ordinance is mutually dependent upon any other section, paragraph, 

sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance. 

 (c) In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this 

Ordinance shall, for any reason whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or 

otherwise unenforceable by the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent 

jurisdiction, it is the express intent of the Mayor and Council that such invalidity, 

unconstitutionality or unenforceability shall, to the greatest extent allowed by law, not 

render invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable any of the remaining phrases, 



 

ORD 2022-05     #LUP 22-01  Page 5 of 9 
 

clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of the Ordinance and that, to the greatest extent 

allowed by law, all remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of the 

Ordinance shall remain valid, constitutional, enforceable, and of full force and effect. 

Section 5.  Penalties in effect for violations of the Zoning Ordinance of the City 

of Snellville at the time of the effective date of this Ordinance shall be and are hereby made 

applicable to this Ordinance and shall remain in full force and effect. 

 Section 6.   All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are 

hereby expressly repealed. 

 Section 7.   This Ordinance was adopted on March ______, 2022.  The effective 

date of this Ordinance shall be the date of adoption unless otherwise stated herein. 

 

 
 

[SIGNATURES BEGIN ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE]  



 

ORD 2022-05     #LUP 22-01  Page 6 of 9 
 

ORDAINED this ______ day of March, 2022. 
   
  
  
      
            
             
       Barbara Bender, Mayor  
      
 
             
ATTEST:      Dave Emanuel, Mayor Pro Tem 
 
 
             
Melisa Arnold, City Clerk    Solange Destang, Council Member 
 
 
             
APPROVED AS TO FORM:    Cristy Lenski, Council Member 
 
 
             
W. Charles Ross, City Attorney   Gretchen Schulz, Council Member 
Powell & Edwards, P.C. 
 
             
       Tod Warner, Council Member 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



 

ORD 2022-05     #LUP 22-01  Page 7 of 9 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
  



18.04 +/- ACRES IN 3100 BLK
ROSEBUD ROAD - SINOCOIN
INVESTMENT LLC
TAX PARCEL R5100 023

Map Printed On 2022-01-19 09:12





 

ORD 2022-05     #LUP 22-01  Page 8 of 9 
 

EXHIBIT “B” 
  



23.61 +/- ACRES AT 1000 ATHENS
HWY - THE KROGER CO
TAX PARCEL R5100 065

Map Printed On 2022-01-19 09:14



 

ORD 2022-05     #LUP 22-01  Page 9 of 9 
 

EXHIBIT “C” 
 



ROSEBUD RD

ATHENS HWY

BROOKS DR

BEN PARK WAY

COOPER SPRINGS RD

RA
MO

N 
DR

CO
OP

ER
 RD

MASTERS LN

LOSSIE LN

LOSSIE WAY

SU
MMIT C

HAS
E D

R

BEN PARK LN

GREEN TURF DR

5100 065

5100 023

5100 041

5101 571

5101 046

5101 321

5100 034

5100 003

5101 320

5101 570

5101 014

5100 016

5100 044

5101 048
5101 063

5101 014

5101 013

5100 092

5093 060

5101 020

5101 574

5101 575

5101 573

5101 215

5101 029

5093 107

5093 054

5093 057

5093 119
5093 118

5093 077

5100 094

5100 091

5093 056

5101 007

5101 022

5093 059

5093 080

5100 099

5100 093

5100 086

5093 084

5100 103

5100 082

5100 102
5100 101

5100 098

5093 083

5100 087
5100 105

5100 090
5100 089

5093 082

5100 096

5093 076

5100 088

5093 078

5100 104

5100 071

5100 079

5100 100

5100 097

5100 078
5100 080

5100 081

5100 085

5100 083

5100 095

5100 084

5093 079

5093 081

5101 022

5101 232

5093 068

5101 073

5101 324

5093 030

5093 208

5101 518
5101 520

5101 517

5101 411

5101 511

5101 479
5101 478

5101 481

5101 457
5101 4555101 444

5101 450
5101 445

5101 4205101 424

5101 521

5101 416
5101 414

5101 417
5101 567

5101 564

5101 409

5101 542
5101 545

5101 463
5101 460

5101 464

5101 459

5101 4545101 508

5101 493
5101 488

5101 494

5101 516

5101 549

5101 562
5101 560

5101 563

5101 467
5101 470

5101 472

5101 534

5101 476
5101 483
5101 487

5093 124

RO
SE

BU
D 

RD

ATHENS HWY

BROOKS DR

CO
OP

ER
 RD

BEN PARK WAY

COOPER SPRINGS RD

MASTERS LN

RA
MO

N 
DR

LOSSIE LN

LOSSIE WAY

SU
MMIT C

HAS
E D

R

BEN PARK LN

TH
OR

NY
 LN

BROOKS DR

5100 065

5100 023

5101 571

5100 041

5101 046

5101 321

5101 014

5100 003

5101 320

5101 570

5101 014

5101 215

5100 016

5100 034

5101 048
5101 063

5101 013

5100 092

5101 324

5101 020

5093 035

5101 574

5101 575

5101 573

5101 029

5093 054

5093 057

5093 119

5093 030
5093 031

5093 118

5101 223

5093 033

5100 094

5100 091

5093 056

5093 193

5101 007

5093 122

5101 022

5093 134

5093 080

5100 099

5100 093

5100 0865100 075

5093 084

5100 103

5100 082

5100 102
5100 101

5100 098

5093 083

5100 087
5100 105

5100 090
5100 089

5093 082

5100 096

5100 071

5100 088

5093 078

5093 120

5100 104

5093 032

5100 072

5093 125

5100 079

5100 100

5100 073

5093 194

5100 097

5093 123

5100 077
5100 078

5093 124

5100 076

5100 080
5100 081

5100 085

5100 083

5100 095

5100 084

5093 079

5100 074

5093 081

5093 133

5093 107

5101 022

5101 230
5101 231

5101 236

5101 232
5101 234

5093 0775093 107

5093 126

5101 235 5101 2295101 227

5101 073

5093 192

5100 0445093 059

5101 518
5101 520

5101 517

5101 411

5101 511

5101 479
5101 478

5101 481

5101 433
5101 436

5101 432

5101 457
5101 455

5101 458
5101 444

5101 450
5101 445

5101 442
5101 439 5101 420

5101 505
5101 506

5101 504

5101 424

5101 521

5101 416
5101 414

5101 417
5101 567

5101 564

5101 409

5101 542
5101 545

5101 463
5101 460

5101 464

5101 459

5101 454

5101 493
5101 488

5101 494

5101 516

5101 549

5101 562
5101 560

5101 563

5101 467
5101 470

5101 472

5101 534

5101 476
5101 483
5101 487

LUP  22-01 
Commercial Retail to Highway 78 East Activity Center

Legend
78 East Activity Center
Conservation
Health Village
Industrial Mixed Use
Medium Density Residential
North Rd Redevelopment Area
Office/Professional
Park/Recreation
Public/Civic
Residential -Low Density
Residential-Medium Density
Retail
Town Center
Transportation/Communication/Utilities

Legend
78 East Activity Center
Conservation
Health Village
Industrial Mixed Use
Medium Density Residential
North Rd Redevelopment Area
Office/Professional
Park/Recreation
Public/Civic
Residential -Low Density
Residential-Medium Density
Retail
Town Center
Transportation/Communication/Utilities












	Work Session Agenda 
	Public Hearing & Regular Meeting Agenda
	Announcements
	Minutes - March 14 2022
	2nd Reading - SUP 22-01 - 2135 E. Main St. 
	2nd Reading - LUP 22-01 - US Hwy 78/Athens Highway and Rosebud Road
	Thirteenth Amendment - Master Development Agreement

